UNIVERSITY REVIEW COMMITTEE Thursday, February 12, 2015 3 p.m., Hovey 209

MINUTES

Members present: Rick Boser, Phil Chidester, Angela Bonnell, Diane Dean, Joe Goodman, Doris Houston, Sheryl Jenkins, David Rubin, Sam Catanzaro (non-voting)

Members not present: Bill O'Donnell

Others present: Bruce Stoffel (recorder)

I. Call to order

Chairperson Sheryl Jenkins called the meeting to order at 3:02 p.m.

II. Approval of minutes from the February 5, 2015 meeting

Bruce Stoffel circulated minutes of the February 5, 2015 meeting to committee members. Jenkins asked that approval of the minutes be deferred to the February 26, 2015 meeting to allow committee members sufficient time to review them.

III. Process for discussing ASPT sub-group recommendations

Jenkins said that review of sub-group recommendations would commence at the next committee meeting, scheduled for February 26, 2015. Jenkins asked that committee members plan to work through issues in sub-group order, from Sub-group 1 to Sub-group 4.

IV. Draft ASPT policies on faculty discipline

Sam Catanzaro provided context for review of draft ASPT policies regarding faculty discipline (see attached). In 2013-2014 the Academic Senate chairperson requested development of a more informative and detailed policy regarding faculty dismissal. That year the University Review Committee and the Faculty Affairs Committee of the Academic Senate considered the matter and provided feedback regarding a draft policy. As review of the policy proceeded, it became clearer to Catanzaro that the policy should be integrated with ASPT policies, so the policy document reviewed in 2013-2014 has been recast as part of the ASPT document. After reviewing an earlier draft of the proposal, the Faculty Affairs Committee recommended adding provisions for minor sanctions to the provisions for suspension and dismissal. That has been done, Catanzaro said.

Catanzaro informed committee members that just one faculty member has been dismissed from Illinois State University since its founding in 1857. Having a policy in place would help guide the University through the stress related to a proposed dismissal in the unlikely event one should occur. The draft being considered at this meeting reflects benchmarking with institutions similar to Illinois State University with respect to size, shared governance culture, and mission. The draft also takes into account recommendations of the American Association of University Professors (AAUP).

Catanzaro said that the draft suspension and dismissal policy will be considered by URC as part of the larger package of changes to the ASPT document. Catanzaro will keep the Faculty Affairs Committee chairperson updated regarding URC progress in reviewing the suspension and dismissal policy.

Catanzaro asked for feedback from committee members regarding the latest draft.

Referring to Section XI.A.5 (line 31), Phil Chidester asked how often the University has dismissed faculty members due to program termination. Catanzaro responded that program termination is rare. He added that procedures have already been adopted to guide the University through those rare instances. Those procedures provide for reassignment of faculty members to other programs when feasible. Rubin asked if those procedures cover non-tenure track faculty members as well as tenure track faculty members. Catanzaro responded that the policy addresses tenure track faculty.

Rick Boser suggested dropping use of the word "minor" to describe sanctions. Problems elevated to discussion of sanctions, such as violations of the Code of Ethics, are not minor, he said. Agreeing with Boser, Chidester suggested referring to "sanctions" rather than "minor sanctions." Catanzaro explained that the Faculty Affairs Committee decided to use the term "minor" after reviewing a similar policy from Michigan State University. Catanzaro will consider other terminology.

Referring to Section XII.B.2 (beginning on line 96), Chidester suggested that a DFSC/SFSC should inform the faculty member before communicating a recommendation for a sanction to the appropriate Dean and the Provost. This would be consistent with the approach described elsewhere in the ASPT document to work through problems at the unit level, especially issues that are minor. Chidester expressed concern that a DFSC/SFSC might start reporting minor issues to the Provost when those issues should instead be resolved by the unit. Boser agreed, suggesting adding language to the effect that a faculty member will be notified of any action before it is reported outside the department. Catanzaro said he will draft language to address this concern.

Referring to Section XIII.C, line 129, Boser asked if the sentence "Individuals suspended without pay and subsequently exonerated can be compensated" should instead read "Individuals suspended without pay and subsequently exonerated shall be compensated." Catanzaro noted that university legal counsel prefers using the term "can," however in practice the University would most likely compensate the faculty member. Catanzaro will revisit this matter with legal counsel.

Referring to Section XIII.D.2, line 144, Boser asked if the phrase "to this" is redundant in that context. He also noted inclusion of two periods after that phrase. Catanzaro said that he typically prefers redundancy if it serves to clarify, but he will omit the phrase "to this" in this instance and will also correct the punctuation.

David Rubin asked if a flow chart will be added to this new draft, as was the case with a prior draft. Angela Bonnell agreed with Rubin's suggestion. Catanzaro said he could add a flow chart after the committee has decided on the text or, if a flow chart would help committee members in their review of the draft, he could create one now.

Referring to Section XIV.A.1.b, Diane Dean asked if there really might be situations in which a faculty member might not want to receive a written statement of reasons for non-

reappointment. Catanzaro explained that once reasons are written, the written statement may be discoverable. The wording in the draft is recommended by AAUP and allows faculty members to decide whether to have reasons committed to writing based on circumstances unique to each case.

Referring to that same section, Boser questioned whether it would be appropriate to ask a chair/director to draft and send the written statement. This might be challenging, especially for new chairs/directors, he said. Catanzaro responded that assistance from the dean, Provost's office, and university general counsel is implied.

Referring to Section XIV.3.j.i, Chidester asked about the rationale for the Faculty Review Committee (FRC) deciding whether a hearing should be public or private. Catanzaro explained that FRC would attempt to reach a mutually agreeable arrangement with the faculty member regarding the nature of the hearing, exercising professional judgment in doing so. Ultimately, however, FRC would make the final decision in such matters, as the body convening the hearing.

Catanzaro noted another redundant "to this" phrase on line 387.

Boser asked that the document be edited for consistency in use of semi-colons and periods.

Chidester thanked Catanzaro for consistency with use of the term "shall," noting that this draft is much more consistent with that usage than other documents the committee has been reviewing recently.

Chidester expressed concern that there could be a glaring omission in the draft that might not yet be obvious but might be detected through review of a flow chart illustrating processes described in the text. Catanzaro said he will work to complete a flow chart before the next URC meeting. He will send the chart to committee members in advance of the next meeting and ask members to review the document once more, using the flow chart as an aid.

Catanzaro asked committee members if they have any issues related to the recommended timelines attached to the draft policy. He reminded committee members that extensions can be granted by the Provost or the President if conditions warrant them.

Jenkins asked if the timelines attached to the draft policy will appear in the ASPT document. Catanzaro said they could. Jenkins noted irregular spacing in the Activity column in the sixth row (from the top) of the timeline titled "Dismissal – XIV, Dismissal of Tenured Faculty – XIV.B." Catanzaro explained that entries in that row are intended to be subordinate to entries in the prior row. He will test if removing the line between those rows makes that hierarchy clearer.

Rubin asked if there are any differences in the manner in which the policy relates to tenured and probationary faculty members. Catanzaro responded that faculty in the two categories are treated equally.

Also referring to the timeline titled "Dismissal – XIV, Dismissal of Tenured Faculty – XIV.B," Chidester noted that an entry in the Recommended Timeline column of row five (from the top) refers to setting a hearing "at least 10 business days after the date of the Provost's letter ..." Chidester suggested adding a deadline to that passage.

Referring to the recommended timeline titled "Dismissal – XIV, Probationary Faculty – Dismissal for Adequate Cause," Doris Houston suggested that the phrase "As soon as is feasible" be replaced with clearer direction. She noted that a similar phrase appears in the text, on line 259 (page 6 of the draft). Perhaps that phrase could be deleted, she said. Catanzaro will delete the phrase from both locations.

Houston noted that entries in that same timeline (titled "Dismissal – XIX, Probationary Faculty – Dismissal for Adequate Cause," do not include text references as is the case with entries in other timelines in the draft. She asked if the notation in the timeline title to "A.3" means that all entries in that timeline refer to that section of the text. Catanzaro said it does.

Catanzaro then summarized the changes he will make to the draft based on suggestions made at this meeting. He said he will circulate a revised policy, with a flow chart, for discussion at the next committee meeting.

Jenkins said the next meeting is scheduled for February 26. The meeting will begin with discussion of the revised faculty discipline policy. The committee will then begin discussion of ASPT sub-group recommendations, beginning with recommendations from Sub-Group 1.

V. Adjournment

Chidester moved, Rubin seconded that the meeting be adjourned. The meeting adjourned at 3:53 p.m.

Respectfully submitted, Diane Dean, Secretary Bruce Stoffel, Recorder

Attachments:

Draft ASPT policies on faculty discipline, including

Memorandum from Sam Catanzaro to Sheryl Jenkins dated January 30, 2015 Recommended Timelines for Faculty Discipline Draft ASPT sections on Minor Sanctions, Suspension, and Dismissal/Termination of Appointment Proposed Revisions of ASPT Policies Table of Contents Reflecting Draft Sections on Disciplinary Actions



Vice President Provost of the University

401 Hovey Hall Campus Box 4000 Normal, IL 61790-4000 Phone: (309) 438-7018 Fax: (309) 438-5602

MEMORANDUM

TO: Sheryl Jenkins, Chair, University Review Committee

FROM: Sam Catanzaro, Assistant Vice President for Academic Administration

RE: Draft ASPT Policies on Faculty Discipline

DATE: January 30, 2015

Attached please find a draft of new and revised sections of the ASPT Policies pertaining to faculty discipline. I request that URC review this draft pursuant to ASPT Policy II.C, and that this review be completed in time for forwarding the sections to Faculty Caucus for final approval prior to the end of the Spring 2015 semester.

Development of these draft policies began at the request of the Chair of the Academic Senate during 2013-14, with review by both URC and the Faculty Affairs Committee of the Academic Senate. The attached version of these draft policies reflects the input of both committees. Some highlights include:

- Organization under the broad rubric of "Disciplinary Action," with distinct sections on "General Considerations" (XI), "Minor Sanctions" (XII), "Faculty Suspensions" (XIII), and "Termination of Appointment of Probationary and Tenured Faculty" (XIV). A draft of how this would appear in the ASPT Table of Contents is attached. This approach will necessitate re-numbering of current ASPT Policies XI through XIV.
- Last year, URC reviewed early versions of the sections on "Faculty Suspensions" (XIII) and on dismissal of Tenured Faculty (XIV.B). FAC suggested the current organizational rubric and specifically requested development of sections on General Considerations and Minor Sanctions. General Considerations (XI) includes material that had been embedded in earlier versions of the sections on suspensions and on dismissal of tenured faculty.
- The timelines have been lengthened compared to those that were included in the versions reviewed by URC last year. A summary of the timelines is also attached.
- Because of the extent of new material and re-organization, this version does not show tracked changes. However, a few comments are included to provide additional background and some cross-referencing to the current ASPT Policies.

DRAFT ASPT sections on Minor Sanctions, Suspension, and Dismissal/Termination of Appointment: 01-27-2015

DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS

XI. General Considerations

A. Types of Disciplinary Actions

ASPT XII.

actions include Minor Sanctions, Suspension, and Dismissal. 2. Minor sanctions may be imposed for such adequate causes as violations of laws or University policies, including the Code of Ethics and its appendices. Specific policies related to minor sanctions are provided in

1. Faculty may be subject to discipline of varying levels. Disciplinary

- 3. Suspension occurs when a faculty member is temporarily relieved of academic duties, such that the faculty member is not engaged in any teaching, research, or service activities at the University. The faculty member could be on paid or unpaid status. Specific policies related to suspensions are provided in ASPT XIII.
- 4. It is understood that suspension (with or without pay) of faculty members will only be contemplated in circumstances when there is a reasonable threat of imminent harm to the University, including the faculty member in question, students, and other employees or when credible evidence of adequate cause for dismissal is available. The administration of the University will inform the faculty member of its rationale for judging that suspension is indicated.

- 5. Dismissal of a tenured faculty member may be effected by the University for such adequate causes as lack of fitness to continue to perform in the faculty member's professional capacity as a teacher or researcher; failure to perform assigned duties in a manner consonant with professional standards; malfeasance; or demonstrable University financial exigency or program termination. Specific policies related to termination of tenured faculty appointments are provided in ASPT XIV.B.
- 6. Termination of faculty due to financial exigency or program termination will follow the process outlined in the ISU Constitution (Article III, Section 4.B.2) and all applicable policies.

41 42 43

B. Faculty Rights

44 45 46

1. Disciplinary actions (including suspension or termination) or the threat thereof may not be used to restrain faculty members' exercise of academic freedom. Faculty members shall retain their right to file a grievance with

Comment [SC1]: Currently ASPT Policy XI.B.1.

the Faculty Academic Freedom, Ethics, and Grievance Committee, if they believe that their academic freedom or the Code of Ethics has been violated.

51 52

53

54

2. In all disciplinary proceedings, faculty members have the rights to due process, to timely notice, to seek advice, to respond to developments in the disciplinary process, and to have an advisor and/or counsel present at discussions, hearings, and appeals. Such advisor/counsel is advisory to the faculty member only.

55 56 57

58

59

60

61

62

66 67

68

69

70

71

C. Faculty members' duties may be reassigned temporarily while possible causes for disciplinary actions are being investigated or while the due process for a disciplinary action is being followed. The reasons for such reassignment of duties will be provided to the faculty member. Such reassignments will be made to prevent reasonable threats of harm to the University, the individual faculty member, or other members of the University community; when required by law; or when necessitated by pending criminal investigation or legal proceedings.

63 64 65

D. Probationary faculty who face disciplinary actions and are either exonerated or required to complete corrective actions may request a one year "stop-the-clock" extension of their as probationary period, as described in IX.B.3. The records of the disciplinary process, including documentation of exoneration and completion of any required corrective actions, may be reviewed in the tenure and promotion process as it bears on the faculty member's performance in teaching, research, and service. The purpose of such review will be to ensure that only the documented facts of the individual's exoneration and/or corrective actions are considered.

72 73 74

XII. Minor Sanctions

A. Minor sanctions include oral and written reprimand, fines, reduction in salary, and requirement of corrective action.

B. Minor sanctions may be initiated by a DFSC/SFSC or by the appropriate College Dean or by the Provost. 1. The Dean or Provost may initiate minor sanctions upon receipt of a

83 84 85

86

87

88

substantiated finding of violation from University Ethics Officer, for violations of the State Ethics Act and other relevant laws; the Academic Freedom, Ethics, and Grievance Committee, for violations of academic freedom or the Code of Ethics; the Office of Equal Opportunity, Ethics, and Access, for violations of the Anti-Harassment and Anti-Discrimination Policy; or the Associate Vice President for Research, for violations of the Integrity in Research and Scholarly Activities policy. Disciplinary action will not be implemented until all appeals as provided for in the relevant policies are exhausted. When the recommendation to initiate disciplinary action comes from the Dean or the Provost, the faculty member and the DFSC/SFSC will be informed in writing of the

disciplinary action and its rationale. In such cases, the DFSC/SFSC may

89 90 91

92

choose to communicate, in writing, a non-binding advisory recommendation to the Dean or Provost on the matter.

2. The DFSC/SFSC may recommend minor sanctions whenever it becomes aware of evidence of cause for such action, as described in XI.A.2. In such cases, the DFSC/SFSC shall communicate its recommendation to the appropriate Dean and the Provost. The Provost may implement disciplinary action after consultation with the Dean.

C. No minor sanctions may be implemented until all appeals relevant to the policies in question are exhausted.

D. Application of minor sanctions will be communicated to the faculty member in writing by the Provost, who shall also inform the Chair/Director and Dean. If the minor sanctions include corrective actions, the requirements of these corrective actions, including timeline and acceptable documentation will be described in the same written communication and copied to the personnel/ASPT file. The faculty member may request, and shall receive, clarification of such requirements.

XIII. Faculty Suspensions

A. Faculty members may be suspended for a specified time period, or with requirements of corrective action to be completed prior to reinstatement, or as a preliminary step toward termination of appointment/dismissal for cause (see XIV).

B. A faculty member in the suspension process is afforded due process. This right is balanced against the University's responsibility to prevent harm to students, other employees, and the institution itself.

C. Ordinarily, suspensions will be paid suspensions. Suspensions without pay will only occur after the process described in XIII.D is completed and all appeals or related grievances are adjudicated. In extraordinary cases when there is evidence that the faculty member has abandoned professional duties or is unable to fulfill such duties, a temporary suspension without pay may be instituted prior to completion of the University's process. Individuals suspended without pay and subsequently exonerated can be compensated.

D. Procedural Considerations Related to Suspension

Each step in the procedures described below should be completed as soon
as is practicable, and normally in the time frame indicated. However, the
President or Provost may extend these deadlines for good reason, and
concerned parties may request consideration for doing so. The President,
Provost, or their designee will communicate extensions of the normal
timelines provided below in writing to all concerned parties. Such

extensions shall not constitute a procedural violation of this policy.

- 2. There shall be discussion between the faculty member, the Chair/Director, the Dean, and Provost, or their designees. Ordinarily, the Provost's designee will not be an attorney for the University, though there may be exceptions to this. The intention of this discussion will be to develop a mutually agreeable solution that ensures safety for the University community and educational success of students. This mutually agreeable solution could result in a suspension or a re-assignment of duties.
- 3. While discussion is ongoing, the University reserves the right to temporarily re-assign a faculty member from any or all duties, including teaching, in order to prevent harm to the University or members of its community; when required by law; or when necessitated by pending criminal investigation or legal proceedings. (See ASPT XI.C.)
- 4. If a mutually agreeable solution is found, it shall be documented in writing signed by the faculty member and appropriate administrative officers of the university. A mutually agreeable solution should be finalized within 5 business days of initiation of discussion. However, if the parties mutually agree in writing, this period may be extended if such extension would make agreeing to a solution likely. Such an agreement will be communicated to the Dean and Provost within 5 business days of the initiation of discussion.
- 5. If a mutually agreeable solution cannot be found and it is determined that suspension is necessary, then the following process will take place.
 - a. The Chair/Director will consult with DFSC/SFSC. Such consultation will entail informing the DFSC/SFSC of the areas of concern and the reasons why suspension is indicated. Such consultation will include review of relevant documentation/information (e.g., past performance evaluations; investigation report) and/or advice of Legal Counsel.
 - b. The faculty member will be notified in writing of the consultation with the DFSC/SFSC, including the reasons why suspension is indicated. The faculty member shall have the opportunity to present reasons why suspension should not occur, in writing, to the DFSC/SFSC. The faculty member's written statement shall be submitted within 5 business days of notification of the consultation with the DFSC/SFSC.
 - c. There shall be documentation of the consultation with the DFSC/SFSC. The elected members of the DFSC/SFSC may make a non-binding advisory recommendation to the Chair/Director. Consultation with the DFSC/SFSC,

Sanctions/Suspension/Dismissal Draft Page 5

documentation of such, and any recommendations made by the DFSC/SFSC, shall be completed within 10 business days.

d. Following DFSC/SFSC consultation, the Chair/Director shall consult with the Dean and Provost and provide written notice of a decision to the faculty member, Dean, and Provost within 5 business days. The DFSC/SFSC shall be informed of the decision. If the reasons for the suspension also constitute adequate cause for dismissal as described below and in ASPT Policies XIV.B.1, the written notice shall so indicate, and the dismissal procedures delineated below shall commence.

Comment [SC2]: New numbering, see below

- 6. A suspended faculty member may appeal to the President within 10 business days of the written notice from the Chair/Director, as described in XII.E.4.c. Such appeal must be made in writing, with copies provided to the Chair/Director, Dean, and Provost. Appeals may be based on substantive or procedural grounds. The President shall rule on the appeal within 21 business days.
- 7. Suspended faculty members shall retain their right to file a grievance with the Faculty Academic Freedom, Ethics, and Grievance Committee, if they believe that their academic freedom or the Code of Ethics has been violated. Suspensions will remain in effect while such grievances are adjudicated.
- Faculty members who are suspended as a preliminary step toward dismissal for cause will retain their right to due process throughout the dismissal proceedings, which shall follow the principles and steps described below.

XIV. Termination of Appointment of Probationary and Tenured Faculty A. Probationary Faculty

- 1. Recommendations for nonreappointment prior to a tenure decision shall be made by the DFSC/SFSC in consultation with the Dean and the Provost. The Chairperson/Director of the DFSC/SFSC shall communicate the recommendation of nonreappointment in writing to the faculty member, the Dean, and the Provost. Nonreappointment can also be the result of a negative tenure recommendation. Official notices of nonreappointment, whether issued prior to a tenure decision or as a result of a negative tenure decision, are issued from the Office of the Provost.
 - a. Upon notice of non-reappointment other than a negative tenure recommendation, a probationary faculty member may request an oral statement of reasons for non-reappointment from the Chair/Director.

Comment [SC3]: Section XIV.A 1 and 2 on Probationary Faculty are currently ASPT XI.A. Section XIV.A.3 is new language added to address termination for cause (e.g., major criminal offense or ethics violation) as distinct from non-reappointment for poor performance or lack of progress toward tenure.

Sanctions/Suspension/Dismissal Draft Page 6

- b. Following the oral statement of reasons for non-reappointment under a. (above), a probationary faculty member may request a written statement of reasons for non-reappointment from the Chair/Director. The Chair/Director shall advise the probationary faculty member of the pros and cons of obtaining such a statement in writing. If the probationary faculty member still wishes a written statement, the Chair/Director shall provide the requested written statement.
- c. Appeals of non-reappointment other than those following a negative tenure decision shall be governed by Article XIII.J.

Comment [SC4]: Will change to XVI

d. Appeals of non-reappointment following a negative tenure recommendation shall follow the provision of Article XIII. F.

Comment [SC5]: Will change to XVI

- 2. Notice of termination shall be given not later than March 1 of the first academic year of service; or, if a one-year appointment terminates during an academic year, at least three months in advance of its termination; not later than February 1 of the second academic year of service; or, if the appointment terminates during an academic year, at least six months in advance of its termination; at least twelve months before termination of an appointment after two or more years of service.
- 2.3 Termination of a probationary faculty for such adequate causes as lack of fitness to continue to perform in the faculty member's professional capacity as a teacher or researcher; failure to perform assigned duties in a manner consonant with professional standards; or malfeasance may proceed irrespective of the timeline specified in XIII.A.2. Notice of such termination will be issued by the Provost, after consultation with the Dean and Department Chair/School Director, as soon as feasible. Appeals may be made to the President within 10 business days of the Provost's communication of the termination. The President shall rule on the appeal within 21 business days.

B. Tenured Faculty

1. The standard for dismissal of a tenured faculty member is that of adequate cause. The burden of proof shall be upon the institution. Negative performance-evaluation ratings shall not shift the burden of proof to the faculty member (to show cause why the faculty member should be retained). Evaluation records may be admissible but may be rebutted as to accuracy.

Comment [SC6]: Currently XI.B.3.

2. ASPT Policy V.C.3 provides for initiation of dismissal proceedings by the DFSC/SFSC. University Administration may also initiate dismissal proceedings when it becomes aware of adequate cause.

3. Procedural Considerations Related to Termination of Appointment of Tenured Faculty

Comment [SC7]: From XIV.B.3 onward, draft policy is that reviewed during 2013-14 by URC and FRC, with some minor changes

- a. Each step in the procedures described below should be completed as soon as is practicable, and normally in the time frame indicated. However, the President or Provost may extend these deadlines for good reason, and concerned parties may request consideration for doing so in writing. The President, Provost, or their designee will communicate extensions of the normal timelines provided below in writing to all concerned parties. Such extensions shall not constitute a procedural violation of this policy.
- b. If the recommendation to initiate dismissal proceedings comes from the Department, School, or College, then the DFSC/SFSC (per ASPT V.C.2) or Dean of the College in which the faculty member's locus of tenure resides will submit a letter to the Provost describing charges that the University has adequate cause to effect dismissal of the faculty member.

If the recommendation to initiate dismissal proceedings comes from the University Administration, the Provost will inform the faculty member in writing of the charges and provide the Dean and DFSC/SFSC with a copy. In such cases, the DFSC/SFSC may choose to communicate, in writing, a non-binding advisory recommendation to the Provost on the matter.

If a faculty member being charged with adequate cause for dismissal is suspended as described in ASPT XII, the due process for suspension will be followed while dismissal proceedings are underway.

- c. The Provost will direct, in writing, the Faculty Caucus of the Academic Senate to select an Initial Review Committee of six faculty members to determine whether, in its view, formal proceedings for the faculty member's dismissal should be instituted. This written direction shall be made within 5 business days of date of the letter initiating dismissal proceedings (from the Provost, DFSC/SFSC, or Dean as required in XIV.B.3.b). The committee will consist of one faculty member from each college except that in which the faculty member's locus of tenure resides. The Faculty Caucus should meet in executive session within 21 business days of the date of the Provost's written direction to select the Initial Review Committee members.
- d. The Initial Review Committee will review each charge contained in the letter alleging adequate cause described in XII.B.5.b, and

will have the authority to interview the respondent/faculty member, the Dean, the Department Chair/School Director, and any other person who may have relevant information. The Initial Review Committee may also have access to any relevant documentation.

- e. The Initial Review Committee will submit their recommendation within 21 business days of the date of the formation of the committee.
- f. If the Initial Review Committee recommends that dismissal proceedings should commence, or if the Provost, even after considering a recommendation favorable to the faculty member, determines that a proceeding should be undertaken, a statement of the grounds proposed for the dismissal should be jointly formulated by the Initial Review Committee and the Provost or Provost's designee. If there is disagreement, the Provost or the Provost's designee shall formulate the statement. The statement shall be formulated within 10 business days of the committee's communication of the recommendation to the Provost.
- g. The Provost shall communicate in writing to the faculty member: (1) the statement of grounds for dismissal; (2) information regarding the faculty member's procedural rights; and (3) a statement informing the faculty member that, at the faculty member's request, a hearing will be conducted by the Faculty Review Committee (FRC) of Illinois State University to determine whether s/he should be removed from the faculty position on the grounds stated. This communication to the faculty member shall be delivered within 5 business days of the date of the statement. The hearing date should be far enough in advance to permit the faculty member to reasonably formulate and prepare a defense, and at least 10 business days from the date of the Provost's letter communicating the decision to the faculty member.
- h. The faculty member should state in reply no later than 5 business days before the time and date set for the hearing whether s/he wishes a hearing. If a hearing is requested, the faculty member shall answer the statements in the Provost's letter in writing and submit this document to the Provost and the FRC no later than 5 business days before the date set for the hearing.
- i. The Faculty Review Committee (FRC):
 - i. Shall consider the statement of grounds for dismissal already formulated, the recommendation of the Initial

		1 480 7
369		Review Committee, and the faculty member's response
370		before the hearing;
371		-
372	ii.	If the faculty member has not requested a hearing, the FRC
373		may consider the case on the statement of grounds and the
374		reply and any other obtainable information and decide
375		whether the faculty member should be dismissed.
376		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
377	iii	If the faculty member has requested a hearing, the FRC
378	••••	shall hold a hearing.
379		sama nord a neuring
380	j. Hearin	ngs by the Faculty Review Committee
381		The FRC shall decide whether the hearing is public or
382	1.	private;
383	ii	If facts are in dispute, testimony may be taken or other
384	11.	evidence received;
385	***	The Provost or a designee shall attend the hearing
386	III.	(Ordinarily, the Provost's designee will not be an attorney
387		for the University, though there may be exceptions to this);
388	÷**	
389	IV.	The FRC will determine the order of proof, and may secure the presentation of evidence important to the good.
390	**	the presentation of evidence important to the case; The faculty member shall have the option of assistance
390 391	٧.	
391 392		from counsel or other advisor, whose role shall be limited
392 393		to providing advice to the faculty member rather than
393 394	12	presenting or actively engaging in the proceedings;
39 4 395	Vi.	
396		committee in securing the attendance of witnesses.
390 397		Because the committee cannot compel the participation of a
397 398		witness, the proceedings shall not be delayed by the
	:	unavailability of a witness.
399 400	vii.	The proceedings will be recorded at the expense of the
400		University;
401	viii.	The Provost's representative and the faculty member shall
402 403		present any information helpful to the determination. Each
		may request the committee in writing to ask witnesses to
404 405		answer specific questions. Appropriate procedure will be
	:	determined by the FRC.
406	ix.	The FRC shall permit a statement and closing by the
407		Provost's representative and the faculty member. The FRC
408		may exercise its discretion in allowing a reasonable amount
409		of time for each statement.
410	X.	The FRC may request written briefs by the parties.
411	X1.	The FRC shall reach its decision promptly in conference,
412		on the basis of the hearing if one was held, and submit a
413		full written report to the Provost and the faculty member.
414		The written report shall be submitted to the Provost within

Sanctions/Suspension/Dismissal Draft Page 10

415		21 business
416		should be m
417		member.
418		
419	k.	The Provost shall re
420		If the Provost disagr
421		request the FRC to 1
422		make a final decisio
423		dismissed. The Pro
424		the faculty member
425		the FRC (after recor
426		
427	1.	The faculty member
428		President, who shall
429		faculty member sha
430		appeal shall be requ
431		date of the Provost's
432		President shall com
433		Provost, Dean, Chai
434		the written request f
435		
436	m.	Except for such sim
437		covering the time of
438		statements about the

439

440

441

442

21 business days of the hearing. A record of any hearing should be made available to the Provost and to the faculty member.

- k. The Provost shall review the full report of the FRC for final action. If the Provost disagrees with the decision of the FRC, s/he shall request the FRC to reconsider the report. The Provost shall then make a final decision whether the faculty member should be dismissed. The Provost's final decision shall be communicated to the faculty member within 10 business days of the final report of the FRC (after reconsideration, if any).
- 1. The faculty member may appeal the Provost's decision to the President, who shall make a final decision, stating whether the faculty member shall be retained or shall be dismissed. Such appeal shall be requested in writing within 10 business days of the date of the Provost's communication of the final decision. The President shall communicate a decision to the faculty member, the Provost, Dean, Chair, and DFSC/SFSC within 21 business days of the written request for appeal.
- m. Except for such simple announcements as may be required, covering the time of the hearing and similar matters, public statements about the case by either the faculty member or administrative officers should be avoided so far as possible until the proceedings have been completed. Announcement of the final decision should include a statement of the FRC's original decision, if this has not previously been made known.

Recommended Timelines for Faculty Discipline

General Note: All disciplinary processes should be completed as soon as is practicable, and ordinarily according to the following timelines. However, the President or Provost may extend these deadlines for good reason, and concerned parties may request consideration for doing so. The President, Provost, or their designee will communicate extensions of the normal timelines provided below in writing to all concerned parties. Such extensions shall not constitute a procedural violation of this policy. (See also draft ASPT Policies XIII.D.1 and XIV.B.3.a.)

Suspension – XIII

Activity	Recommended Timeline
Discussion leading to mutually agreeable solution (D.4)	Within 5 business days; can be extended by mutual agreement. Any extension agreement communicated to Dean and Provost within 5 business days
DFSC/SFSC consultation and written notification of faculty member (D.5.a)	Upon failure to find mutually agreeable solution
Faculty member's written statement to DFSC/SFSC (reasons why suspension should not occur) (D.5.b)	Within 5 business days of notification to faculty member of consultation with DFSC/SFSC
Consultation with and nonbinding advisory recommendation from DFSC/SFSC (D.5.c)	Within 10 business days
Consultation with Dean and Provost and written notice of decision (D.5.d)	Within 5 business days
Appeal to President (copies to Chair, Dean, and Provost) (D.6)	Within 10 business days of written notice of decision
President ruling on appeal (D.6)	Within 21 business days of written appeal
	56 days business days

Recommended Timelines for Faculty Discipline

$\underline{Dismissal-XIV}$

Probationary Faculty – Dismissal for Adequate Cause (A.3)

Activity	Recommended Timeline
Notice issued by Provost	As soon as is feasible
Appeal to President	Within 10 business days of receipt of Provost's
	communication
Decision by President	Within 21 business days of receipt of written statement of
	appeal
	31 business days

Recommended Timelines for Faculty Discipline

$\underline{Dismissal-XIV}$

Dismissal of Tenured Faculty – XIV.B

Activity	Recommended Timeline
Provost directs Faculty Caucus to select Initial Review Committee to determine whether formal proceedings should be instituted (B.3.c)	Within 5 business days of date of letter initiating proceedings
Meeting of Faculty Caucus to select Initial Review Committee (B.3.c)	Within 21 business days of Provost's written direction to form Initial Review Committee
Initial Review Committee submits recommendation (B.3.e)	Within 21 business days of date of Initial Review Committee formation
Statement of grounds for dismissal (B.3.f)	Within 10 business days of committee's recommendation to Provost
Provost letter to faculty member stating grounds for dismissal, procedural rights, and date of optional hearing before FRC (B.3.g)	Delivered within 5 business days of the date of statement of grounds for dismissal. Date of hearing set at least 10 business days after the date of the Provost's letter described in B.3.g
Faculty member replies in writing whether s/he wishes a hearing. If a hearing is requested, faculty member shall include answer the statement of grounds for dismissal in writing. (B.3.h)	No later than 5 business days before hearing date
FRC decision in writing (B.3.j.xi)	Within 21 business days of hearing
Provost final decision communicated (B.3.1)	Within 10 business days of Provost's final decision
Request of appeal to President (B.3.k)	Within 10 business days of Provost's communication of final decision
President communicates decision regarding appeal (B.3.k)	Within 21 business days of written request for appeal
	144 business days

Proposed Revisions of ASPT Policies Table of Contents Reflecting Draft Sections on Disciplinary Actions

	ne Illinois State University Appointment, Salary, Promotion, and	
	SPT) System	
Defin	ition of the Term "Faculty"	1
	Faculty Evaluation Categories	
The F	Faculty Evaluation Process	2
The F	Faculty Appeals Process	4
	sions for Milner Library Faculty	
	sions for Mennonite College of Nursing Faculty	
The ASPT Co	mmittee Structure	7
I.	Committees: Policies, Selection, Organization, and Responsibilities	7
II.	University Review Committee (URC)	8
III.	Faculty Review Committee (FRC)	10
IV.	College Faculty Status Committee (CFSC)	11
V.	Department/School Faculty Status Committee (DFSC/SFSC)	
Policies and P	rocedures for Appointment, Reappointment, Promotion, Tenure, and	
Post-Tenur	e Review	23
VI.	Appointment Policies	23
VII.	Faculty Assignments and Faculty Evaluation	
VIII.	Promotion Policies	26
IX.	Tenure Policies	
X.	Post-Tenure Reviews Including Cumulative Post-Tenure Reviews	34
Disciplinary A	ctions	XX
XI.	General Considerations	xx
XII.	Minor Sanctions	xx
XIII.	Faculty Suspensions	xx
XIV.	Termination of Appointment of Probationary and Tenured Faculty	XX
Performance E	Evaluation and Salary Incrementation	xx
XV.	Performance Evaluation Policies and Salary Incrementation Procedures	XX
Appeals Polici	es and Procedures	xx
XVI.	Appeals Policies and Procedures	xx
	ss to Personnel Documents	
XVII	. Right of Access to Personnel Documents	XX
		xx
APPENDIX 1		
	Performance-Evaluation and Cumulative Post-Tenure Review, Reporting	
	Requirements, and ASPT Elections	XX
APPENDIX 2		xx
APPENDIX 3	8	
	for Faculty Evaluation	
APPENDIX 4	Outline of the Promotion and Tenure Review Process	X X

Comment [SC1]: Completely New Sections

Comment [SC2]: Currently Section XI included in "Policies and Procedures for Appointment, etc."

Comment [SC3]: Beginning here, Sections are re-numbered.